NHS Health Education England

Oxford Medicine Online Books Order Terms & Conditions

Adapted from NICE Electronic and Print Content Framework International Print Contern Francesons Order Terms & Conditions, May 2018 1

THIS AGREEMENT is made the 28th January 2021

BETWEEN:-

- Party 1Health Education England whose principal office is 1st Floor
Blenheim House, Duncombe Street, Leeds LS1 4PL ('The
Purchasing Authority'); and
- Party 2 The Chancellor, Masters and Scholars of the University of Oxford trading as Oxford University Press whose registered office is at Great Clarendon Street, Oxford, OX2 6DP ('the Provider').

Contents

1.	Overriding Provisions Error! Bookmark not defin	ed.		
2.	Introduction Error! Bookmark not defin	ed.		
3.	Defined Terms Error! Bookmark not defin	ed.		
4.	Interpretation Error! Bookmark not defin	ed.		
5.	Appointment	4		
6.	Purchasing Authority's Undertakings	4		
7.	Authorised Officers	5		
8.	Beneficiaries party to this Agreement	5		
9.	Term	7		
0.	Agreement Price	7		
1.	Ordering	9		
2. Packaging and Delivery of Goods (Print Content Resources Only) Error! Bookmark not defined.				
3.	Deliverables	9		
4.	Access to Electronic Content Resources	.10		
5.	Performance of the Deliverable(s)	11		
6.	Performance Measurement and Review	.12		
7.	Intellectual Property	.13		
8.	Liability and Indemnity	.14		
9.	Limitation of Liability	15		
10.	Insurance			
11.	Invoicing and Payment	.16		
12.	Audit, Accounts and Sales Information	.18		

13.	Sub-contractors	19
14.	Staff and Resources	19
15.	Providers' Key Personnel	20
16.	Confidentiality	22
17.	Data Protection	24
18.	Health and Safety	29
19.	Termination	29
20.	Agreement or Specification Change or Variation	31
21.	Dispute Resolution Procedure	32
22.	Force Majeure	33
23.	Environmental and Sustainability	34
24.	Sustainability/Carbon Emission Management	35
25.	Inducements to Purchase	
26.	Procurement Transparency	37
27.	Warranty	
28.	Assignment	
29.	Notices	
30.	Law	39
31.	General	

ANNEX ONE:	41
Specification	41
ANNEX TWO	
NHS Eligibility Criteria	42
Annex THREE	
Pricing Schedule	45
ANNEX FOUR	46
Beneficiaries Party to this Agreement	46
ANNEX FIVE	47
Licence Terms	Error! Bookmark not defined.
ANNEX SIX	48
Variation to Agreement	48
Annex SEVEN	50
Additional Terms	50
SIGNATURES: ORDER TERMS & CONDITIO	NS51

1. Appointment

- 1.1. The Purchasing Authority appoints the Provider to provide the Deliverable(s):
 - 1.1.1. promptly (and in any event within any time targets as may be set out in the Specification or Licence Agreement(s)) and in a professional and courteous manner so as to reflect and promote the image of the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary;
 - 1.1.2. strictly in accordance with the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) and all provisions of the Agreement; and
 - 1.1.3. in accordance with all applicable UK laws and regulations and Good Industry Practice; and
 - 1.1.4. in accordance with the policies (including, when on any premises of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary or on any other premises where it works alongside the Purchasing Authority's or any Beneficiary's staff, any racial discrimination and equal opportunities policies), rules, procedures and the quality standards of the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary as amended from time to time.
- 1.2. The Provider accepts the terms of appointment as provided in clause 5.1
- 1.3. The Provider warrants to the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary it has satisfied itself this it has the abilities and experience in all respects to perform the Deliverable(s) pursuant to the Agreement.

2. Purchasing Authority's Undertakings

- 2.1. The Purchasing Authority shall:
 - 2.1.1. provide the Provider of electronic Content Resources, within thirty (30) days of the Commencement Date, with information sufficient to enable the Provider to enable access to the Service(s) and / or Licensed Materials in accordance with any obligations agreed in the Licence Agreement(s). Should the Purchasing Authority make any significant change to such information, it will notify the Provider not less than ten (10) days before the change takes effect;
 - 2.1.2. keep full and up-to-date records of all Authorised Users and provide the Provider with details of such additions, deletions or other alterations to such records as are necessary to

enable the Provider to provide Authorised Users with access to the Service(s) and / or Licensed Materials;

2.1.3. use reasonable endeavours to ensure that all Authorised Users are appropriately notified of the importance of respecting the intellectual property rights in the Goods and / or Licensed Materials.

3. Authorised Officers

- 3.1. Any notice, information or communication given to or made by the Authorised Officer shall be deemed to have been given or made by the Purchasing Authority.
- 3.2. Subject to 7.1, the Provider shall decline from providing any the Deliverable(s) or the service in any notice, information or communication issued by any of the Purchasing Authority's or Beneficiary's staff who are not Authorised Officers.

4. Beneficiaries party to this Agreement

- 4.1. The Purchasing Authority and the Provider acknowledge that they have entered into the Agreement for the benefit of each of the Beneficiaries as listed in Annex FOUR. Accordingly, the Purchasing Authority and the Provider agree that (in addition to the Purchasing Authority's right to enforce the Agreement) each of the Beneficiaries may enforce any term of the Agreement.
- 4.2. Save as provided in clause 8.1 a person who is not a Party to the Agreement shall have no rights pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of the Agreement.
- 4.3. All or any of the provisions of the Agreement may not be rescinded or varied by any of the Parties in their entirety or in part without the consent and written agreement of the Purchasing Authority.
- 4.4. The Provider agrees that it will not raise as a defence or set off against any claim brought against it by any Beneficiary any matter which would have been available to the Provider by way of defence or set off if proceedings had been brought against the Provider by the Purchasing Authority or by way of counterclaim against such of the Beneficiaries if such Beneficiary had been a Party to the Agreement.
- 4.5. In the event that any Beneficiary listed in Annex FOUR wishes to enforce its rights under this clause 8 the following provisions shall apply:
 - 4.5.1. the Beneficiaries shall have the same rights as the Purchasing Authority under the Agreement and shall comply

with all the terms of the Agreement which apply to the Beneficiary;

- 4.5.2. the Beneficiaries agree to exercise their rights under the Agreement only in relation to the provision of Deliverable(s) to the Purchasing Authority or any of the Beneficiaries and not for any other purpose whatsoever. In exercising their rights under the Agreement the Beneficiaries shall at all times treat all information concerning the Agreement with the strictest confidence and in accordance with Clause 26;
- 4.5.3. the Beneficiaries shall not enter into any obligations in the name of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary and shall not make any representations or give any warranties on behalf of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary;
- 4.5.4. the Purchasing Authority shall not be liable to any Beneficiary for any acts or omissions of the Provider or for any loss, damage or other expenses incurred or suffered by any Beneficiary as a result of such Beneficiary exercising its rights under the Agreement;
- 4.5.5. each Beneficiary undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified the Purchasing Authority and any other Beneficiary party to this Agreement from and against all costs, claims, demands, liabilities, damages, losses and expenses (including all legal expenses) incurred or suffered by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary party to this Agreement:
 - 4.5.5.1. arising out of or in connection with any act or omission of the Beneficiary or any breach of any term of the Agreement by the Beneficiary;
 - 4.5.5.2. as a result of any claim, loss, injury, damage, expense or delay suffered or incurred by the Provider or any third party arising directly or indirectly from or in any way connected with the acts or omissions of the Beneficiary in enforcing its rights under the Agreement, whether wilful, reckless, fraudulent, negligent, dishonest or otherwise; and
- 4.6. In the event of any dispute:
 - 4.6.1. between the Provider and any Beneficiary relating to any act or omission of such Beneficiary or any breach of any term of the Agreement by such Beneficiary;
 - 4.6.2. between the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary relating to the supply of Deliverable(s) by the Beneficiary to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary;

- 4.6.3. the Purchasing Authority reserves the right to suspend such Beneficiary's rights under the Agreement until such dispute has been resolved;
- 4.7. If the Provider makes a claim against any Beneficiary for any act or omission of such Beneficiary or any breach of the Agreement by such Beneficiary the Provider agrees that it shall not include the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary as a party to any proceedings against such Beneficiary;
 - 4.7.1. the Purchasing Authority shall notify any Beneficiary which is removed from the list set out in Annex FOUR and such Beneficiary shall immediately cease to use any Deliverable(s) supplied under the Agreement.

5. Term

- 5.1. This Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date and shall remain in force for the Term, unless it is otherwise terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or otherwise lawfully terminated, or extended.
- 5.2. The Agreement shall commence on 01 April 2021 and shall expire on 31 March 2024
- 5.3. The Purchasing Authority may extend the Term by notice in writing to the Provider. Any extension price shall be agreed between both Parties in writing.
- 5.4. The extension term available for this Agreement shall be 2 (two) x
 12 (twelve) months periods, subject to financial agreement for each
 12 (twelve) month term.

6. Agreement Price

- 6.1. In consideration of the Provider's due and proper performance of its obligations under the Agreement, the Provider may charge the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary the Agreement Price in accordance with this Clause 10, Annex THREE and the Licence Agreement(s).
- 6.2. The Agreement Price provided to the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary must clearly set out the pricing methodology and purchasing model(s) provided as agreed under the NICE Framework for the Content Resource(s) supplied. Only the purchasing models and discounts agreed under this Framework may be offered by the Provider to Purchasing Authorities or Beneficiaries.

- 6.3. The only sums payable by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary to the Provider for the provision of the Deliverable(s) shall be the Agreement Price. All other costs, charges, fees and expenses of whatever kind arising out of or in connection with the Agreement shall be the responsibility of the Provider.
- 6.4. Subject to clause 10 the Agreement Price is fixed and shall not be subject to any increase whatsoever by the Provider during the Term.
- 6.5. The Agreement Price includes payment in full for all facilities and resources required by the Provider to provide the Deliverable(s) in accordance with the Agreement. Any facilities or resources needed or used by the Provider to perform the Deliverable(s) shall be provided by the Provider without additional cost to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary.
- 6.6. In accordance with the Agreement, where the Provider is required to provide Deliverables, the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary shall be entitled to withhold payment of the Agreement Price pending receipt and acceptance of the Deliverables in accordance with the Specification or Licence Agreement(s).
- 6.7. Subject to clause 9 where the Term allows for the option(s) to renew Subscriptions, the Provider shall:
 - 6.7.1. provide the Purchasing Authority with dates for renewals to ensure continuity of supply. A renewal list must be provided to the Purchasing Authority to include:
 - 6.7.1.1. current prices;
 - 6.7.1.2. titles clearly marked as to whether firm or estimated prices;
 - 6.7.1.3. length of grace period to prevent loss of access;
 - 6.7.1.4. which subscriptions cover more than a 12 (twelve) Month period;
 - 6.7.1.5. the purchasing model(s) and pricing methodology used;
 - 6.7.2. provide written notification of the correct renewal price and the percentage change within 05 (five) working days of receiving this information from the Publisher. All firm renewal prices should be agreed with the Purchasing Authority 14 (fourteen) working days prior to the of the commencement date for renewals; OR
 - 6.7.3. where a renewal provision has been agreed subject to clause 10.7.1 and 10.7.2, the Provider shall, subject to clause 9.3, renew the supply on written confirmation; OR
 - 6.7.4. terminate the supply on the expiry date of the Term.

6.8. Except where otherwise stated in the Order, the Agreement Price is exclusive of VAT which shall be payable, if applicable, by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary in addition to such Agreement Price. The invoice provided to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary by the Provider in accordance with clause 21.2 shall show the VAT calculations separately at the prevailing rate.

7. Ordering

- 7.1. The Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary has placed the Order on the Provider as principal and the Contracting Authority which established the Framework Agreement for the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary, shall have no liability in respect thereof.
- 7.2. The Provider must accept the Order placed by the Purchasing Authority in either an electronic form (EDI, email or online), by paper, or fax, or telephone if urgent.
- 7.3. The Order must quote the Purchasing Authority Purchase Order number.

8. Deliverables

- 8.1. Wherever the Agreement requires the Provider to provide a Deliverable:
 - 8.1.1. such Deliverable will be delivered in the form prescribed and in accordance with Annex ONE: Specification or the Licence Agreement(s). If no such form is prescribed in the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) the Provider will:
 - 8.1.1.1. provide Deliverables in a professional form to the requirements (including as to time of delivery) notified to the Provider by the Authorised Officer;
 - 8.1.1.2. deliver Goods on the day of publication or within 14 (fourteen) working days of publication.
 - 8.1.2. Where the time of delivery has been agreed by the Parties on the face of the Order or otherwise agreed in writing then time for delivery shall be of the essence and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Purchasing Authority.
 - 8.1.3. the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary may accept such Deliverable or reject it in its reasonable discretion on the grounds that such Deliverable is (in whole or in part) not of satisfactory quality and/or does not meet the brief set out

in the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) or the requirements otherwise made known to the Provider by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary;

- 8.1.4. the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary will not reject any Deliverable (wholly or in part) without providing written reasons to the Provider as to why such Deliverable has been rejected;
- 8.1.5. any dispute as to whether the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary has exercised its right to reject any Deliverable reasonably shall be resolved by the Dispute Resolution Procedure; and
- 8.1.6. any Deliverables which are rejected shall be replaced by the Provider (at no extra charge to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary) by Deliverables which are reasonably satisfactory to the Authorised Officer.
- 8.1.7. subject to clause 13.1.8, risk in any Deliverables supplied shall, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Purchasing Authority (including the Purchasing Authority's rights and remedies under clause 13.1.3 pass to the Purchasing Authority at the time of delivery.

9. Access to Electronic Content Resources

- 9.1. The Provider of electronic Content Resources in this Agreement agrees to grant access for the duration of the agreed Subscription or Contract Period, to any Authorised User of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary that has purchased that content under this Framework Agreement.
- 9.2. Subject to clause 14.1, the route of access shall be agreed between the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary, including but not limited to an Access and Identity Management System (AIMS) contracted for national use.
- 9.3. Subject to clause 14.2, where the access route is via the AIMS contracted for national use in England, the Provider agrees to assist the Purchasing Authority in providing alternative access to electronic resources in the form of an disaster recovery support plan where the AIMS fails or ceases to operate for a significant period of time.
- 9.4. The Purchasing Authority agrees that subject to clauses 14.3 and 14.4, they shall supply the Provider with the relevant user information in order for the Provider to grant access to those eligible users, via an

alternative authentication route provided by the Provider, until such time that the AIMS available for national use is operational.

9.5. Subject to clauses 14.4 and 14.5, the Provider shall meet all costs incurred for the set up and management of any alternative authentication route.

10. Performance of the Deliverable(s)

- 10.1. The Provider shall provide at its own expense all staff, equipment, tools, appliances, materials or items required for the provision of the Deliverable(s) to the Agreement Standard.
- 10.2. To the extent that the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) include the date, format and method of delivery, the applicable performance measures, performance due-by dates, minimum performance levels and methods of performance measurement in respect of the Deliverable(s), the Provider will abide by the same.
- 10.3. If the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) provides for performance of the Deliverable(s) in stages, the Provider undertakes to perform the Deliverable(s) in strict compliance with the timetable for stages as provided in the Specification or Licence Agreement(s).
- 10.4. The Purchasing Authority and the Provider will co-operate with each other in good faith and will take all reasonable action as is necessary for the efficient transmission of information and instructions and to enable the Purchasing Authority, or as the case may be, any Beneficiary to derive the full benefit of the Agreement. At all times in the performance of the Deliverable(s), the Provider will co-operate fully with any other Providers appointed by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary in connection with other Deliverable(s) at the Location.
- 10.5. The Provider shall provide information in a format, medium and at times specified by the Purchasing Authority, related to the performance of the Deliverable(s) as may be reasonably required.
- 10.6. In providing the Deliverable(s), the Provider shall use Good Industry Practice to ensure that any computer systems and/or related hardware and/or software it uses are free from corrupt data, viruses, worms and any other computer programs which might cause harm or disruption to the Purchasing Authority's or, as the case may be, to any Beneficiary's computer systems.
- 10.7. If at any time the Provider becomes aware of any act or omission or any proposed act or omission by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary or by any member, official or employee of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary which prevents or hinders or may prevent

or hinder the Provider from providing the Deliverable(s) in accordance with the Agreement then the Provider shall immediately inform the Authorised Officer of that fact. For the avoidance of doubt, the Provider's compliance with this clause shall not in any way relieve the Provider of any of its obligations under the Agreement.

- 10.8. The Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary shall provide the Provider with copies of its policies, rules, procedures and quality standards (and shall promptly inform the Provider of any amendments to such documents) to enable the Provider to comply with its obligations under the Agreement.
- 10.9. The Purchasing Authority may, where necessary, require the Provider to set up and maintain appropriate policies, rules, procedures and quality standards in relation to the employment of his own staff whilst carrying out their duties in relation to the Agreement at the Location. This shall include, but not be limited to, disciplinary and grievance procedures. The Provider shall provide the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary with copies of such policies, rules, procedures and quality standards (and shall promptly inform the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary of any amendments to such documents).
- 10.10. The Provider will immediately notify the Authorised Officer of any actual or potential problems relating to the Provider's own contractors that affects or might affect his ability to provide the Deliverable(s).
- 10.11. The Provider will be responsible for providing and maintaining the Deliverable(s) to the Agreement Standard at all times and will ensure continuity of supply (at no extra cost to the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary) in accordance with the Specification or Licence Agreement(s). The Provider must have in place contingency plans and arrangements which are approved by the Purchasing Authority to ensure continuity of supply.
- 10.12. The Provider will immediately notify the Authorised Officer of any actual or potential industrial action, including strike action, whether such action be of his own staff or others, that affects or might affect his ability at any time to provide the Deliverable(s).
- 10.13. The Provider will be responsible for providing and maintaining the Deliverable(s) to the Agreement Standard during industrial action, at no additional cost to the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary. The Provider must have in place contingency plans and arrangements which are to be supplied the Purchasing Authority on request.

11. Performance Measurement and Review

11.1. The Provider shall attend formal, minuted review meetings (each such meeting being a "Review"), where agreed and detailed in the Licence

Agreement(s) and as required by the Authorised Officer, to discuss the Purchasing Authority's levels of satisfaction in respect of the Deliverable(s) provided under the Agreement and to agree any necessary action to address areas of dissatisfaction. The Provider will not obstruct or withhold its agreement to any such necessary action. Such Reviews shall be attended by duly authorised and sufficiently senior employees of both the Purchasing Authority and the Provider together with any other relevant attendees. The Parties shall agree a standing agenda for such Reviews.

- 11.2. In addition to any more specific obligations imposed by the terms of the Agreement, it shall be the duty of the Provider to provide the Deliverable(s) to the Agreement Standard which in all respects shall be to the satisfaction of the Authorised Officer.
- 11.3. If any part of any Deliverable is found to be defective or different in any way from the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) or otherwise has not been provided to the Agreement Standard other than as a result of a default or negligence on the part of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary, the Provider shall at its own expense reperform the Deliverable(s) in question (without additional remuneration therefor) within such time as the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary may reasonably specify.
- 11.4. If the performance of the Agreement by the Provider is delayed by reason of any act or default on the part of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary or, by any other cause that the Provider could not have reasonably foreseen or prevented and for which it was not responsible, the Provider shall be allowed a reasonable extension of time for completion of the Deliverable(s) so affected.
- 11.5. On request, the Provider shall submit to the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary progress reports detailing its adherence to the timetable (if any) as set out in the Specification or Licence Agreement(s) in a format approved by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary. The submission and acceptance of such reports shall not prejudice any other rights or remedies of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary under the Agreement.
- 11.6. If required by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary, the Parties shall co-operate in sharing information and developing performance measurement criteria with the object of improving the Parties' efficiency. Any such agreements shall be fully recorded in writing by the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary as the case may be.

12. Intellectual Property

12.1. All Intellectual Property shall remain the property of the owner.

- 12.2. Each Party shall use its best endeavours to safeguard the intellectual property, confidential information and proprietary rights of the other Party.
- 12.3. Goods provided under this Agreement shall be subject to current UK Copyright legislation or any amending legislation and any licence held by the Purchasing Authority which grants additional copying permissions.
- 12.4. Except as expressly provided in the Agreement, the Provider makes no representations or warranties of any kind, express or implied, including, but not limited to, warranties of design, accuracy of the information contained in the Goods and / or Licensed Materials, merchantability or fitness of use for a particular purpose. The Goods and / or Licensed Materials are supplied as is.
- 12.5. Nothing in this document "Order Terms & Conditions" and the Licence Agreement(s) shall make the Purchasing Authority liable for breach of the terms of the Licence Agreement(s) by any Authorised User provided that the Purchasing Authority did not cause, knowingly assist or condone the continuation of such breach after becoming aware of an actual breach having occurred.
- 12.6. Except as provided in clause 18.1, under no circumstances shall the Provider be liable to the Purchasing Authority or any of its Authorised Users or any other person, for any special, exemplary, incidental or consequential damages of any character arising out of the inability to use, or the use of, the Goods and / or Service(s) and/ or Licensed Materials.

13. Liability and Indemnity

- 13.1. Neither Party excludes or limits liability to the other Party for:
 - 13.1.1. death or personal injury caused by its negligence; or
 - 13.1.2. fraud; or
 - 13.1.3. fraudulent misrepresentation; or
 - 13.1.4. any breach of any obligations implied by Section 2 of the Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982.
- 13.2. Subject to clauses 17.6, 18.3 and 18.4, the Provider shall indemnify the Purchasing Authority and keep the Purchasing Authority indemnified fully against all claims, proceedings, actions, damages, costs, expenses and any other liabilities which may arise out of, or in consequence of, the supply, or the late or purported supply, of the Deliverable(s) or the performance or non-performance by the Provider of its obligations under the Agreement or the presence of the Provider or any staff on the Premises, including in respect of any death or

personal injury, loss of or damage to property, , or any other loss which is caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of the Provider.

- 13.3. The Provider shall not be responsible for any injury, loss, damage, cost or expense if and to the extent that it is caused by the negligence or wilful misconduct of the Purchasing Authority or by breach by the Purchasing Authority of its obligations under the Agreement.
- 13.4. Subject always to clauses 18.1 and 18.5, in no event shall either Party be liable to the other for any:
 - 13.4.1. loss of profits, business, revenue or goodwill; and/or
 - 13.4.2. loss of savings (whether anticipated or otherwise); and/or
 - 13.4.3. indirect or consequential loss or damage.
- 13.5. The Provider shall not exclude liability for additional operational, administrative costs and/or expenses or wasted expenditure resulting from the direct Default of the Provider.

14. Limitation of Liability

- 14.1. Subject to 18.1, the Purchasing Authority shall not be liable to the Provider for any indirect or consequent loss, damage, injury or costs whatsoever which arise out of or are connected with the Purchasing Authority's adherence or non-adherence to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
- 14.2. The Provider's liability for Defaults or termination shall be subject to the following financial limits:
 - 14.2.1. the aggregate liability for all Defaults arising in any twelve (12) month contract period from the Commencement Date, in connection with this Agreement shall in no event exceed 125% of the Agreement Price payable by the Purchasing Authority to the Provider;
 - 14.2.2. the aggregate liability in circumstances where the Purchasing Authority terminates this Agreement shall in no event exceed 125% of the Agreement Price payable by the Purchasing Authority to the Provider.

15. Insurance

15.1. The Provider shall maintain an appropriate insurance policy to cover its liabilities to the Purchasing Authority under this Agreement.

- 15.2. To comply with its obligations under this Agreement and as a minimum, where requested by the Purchasing Authority in writing the Provider shall ensure that:
 - 15.2.1. professional indemnity insurance is held by the Provider and by any agent, sub-contractor or consultant involved in the supply of the Services and that such professional indemnity insurance has a minimum limit of indemnity of one million pounds sterling (£1,000,000) for each individual claim or such higher limit as the Purchasing Authority may reasonably require (and as required by Law) from time to time;
 - 15.2.2. employers' liability insurance with a minimum limit of five million pounds sterling (£5,000,000) or such higher minimum limit as required by Law from time to time.
- 15.3. The Provider shall effect and maintain with a reputable insurance company a policy or policies of insurance providing an adequate level of cover in respect of all risks which may be incurred by the Provider, arising out of the Provider's performance of its obligations under the Agreement, including death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property or any other loss. Such insurance shall be maintained for the duration of the Term and for a minimum of 06 (six) years following the expiration or earlier termination of the Agreement.
- 15.4. The Provider shall give the Purchasing Authority, upon reasonable request, copies of all insurance policies or certificates referred to in this clause or a broker's verification of insurance to demonstrate that the appropriate cover is in place, together with receipts or other evidence of payment of the latest premiums due under those policies.
- 15.5. If, for whatever reason, the Provider fails to give effect to and maintain the insurances required by the provisions of the Agreement the Purchasing Authority may make alternative arrangements to protect its interests and may recover the costs of such arrangements from the Provider.
- 15.6. The provisions of any insurance or the amount of cover shall not relieve the Provider of any liabilities under the Agreement. It shall be the responsibility of the Provider to determine the amount of insurance cover that will be adequate to enable the Provider to satisfy any liability under this Agreement.

16. Invoicing and Payment

16.1. The Provider shall invoice the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary for any Deliverable(s) provided by the Provider as detailed in Annex THREE to this document. Such invoice shall be rendered on the

Provider's own invoice form clearly marked with the Purchasing Authority's or the Beneficiary's order number (if any).

- 16.2. The Purchasing Authority reserves the right to return incorrect or inaccurate invoices to the Provider for rectification and re-issue.
- 16.3. Subject to clauses 21.6, 21.7 and 21.5, the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary shall pay any invoice submitted by the Provider in accordance with clause 21.1 and 21.2 within 30 (thirty) calendar days of receipt by the Purchasing Authority or the Beneficiary of such invoice. The Purchasing Authority or the Beneficiary shall pay such invoice(s) by BACS (Bank Automated Clearing System) if it so chooses or any alternate means as agreed between the Purchasing Authority or the Beneficiary and the Provider.
- 16.4. The Provider shall use all best endeavours to accept the Government Procurement Card as a means of payment for the ordered Products and/or Services and or Licensed Materials where such card is agreed with the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary to be a suitable means of payment. The Provider shall be solely liable to pay any merchant fee levied for using the Government Procurement Card and shall not be entitled to recover this charge from the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary.
- 16.5. Pursuant to clause 11.6, where an Order or part Order is automatically cancelled due to delayed publication, the Provider shall return any monies paid by the Purchasing Authority for that Order or part Order within 30 days of the cancellation.
- 16.6. Where an Order or part Order remains missing or unavailable after 01 (one) Year for any reason, the Provider must refund any monies paid by the Purchasing Authority for that missing Order or Order items.
- 16.7. The Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary shall be entitled to deduct from any monies due or to become due to the Provider any monies owing to the Purchasing Authority or the Beneficiary from the Provider pursuant to this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed by the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary, where the Provider may issue a credit note to the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary for the total sum of the monies owed.
- 16.8. Where the performance of the Provider does not meet the required standard then a deduction as set out in the Specification and / or Licence Agreement(s), or as agreed by the Parties, may be made.
- 16.9. Where the Provider is an Agent, the Provider shall ensure prompt payment of all invoices due to the publisher(s). Where there is a delay to the payment of the Agreement Fee to the publisher(s) by the Provider, the Provider shall use its best endeavours to ensure that the Goods and / or Service(s) and / or the Licensed Materials are not

suspended by the publisher(s). In the event that the Goods and / or Service(s) and / or Licensed Materials are suspended, the Purchasing Authority will exercise its rights under clause 21.11.

- 16.10. Subject to clause 21.10, in the event that the Goods and / or Service(s) and / or the Licensed Materials are suspended by the publisher(s) due to delayed payment by the Provider, the Provider will offer the Purchasing Authority a reduction against the Agreement Fee.
- 16.11. In the event of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary breaching clause 21.4, the Provider shall be entitled to charge interest on the outstanding amount owed by the Purchasing Authority or such Beneficiary in accordance with the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998.

17. Audit, Accounts and Sales Information

- 17.1. The Provider grants to the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary, and to any statutory or regulatory auditors of the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary and to authorised agents the right of reasonable access to (and if necessary to copy) the financial records relating to the Deliverables during normal business hours on reasonable prior notice, no more than once per calendar year.
- 17.2. The Provider shall provide all reasonable assistance at all times during the Term and during the period of 06 (six) years thereafter for the purposes of allowing the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiary to obtain such information as is necessary to fulfil the Purchasing Authority's obligations to supply information for parliamentary, governmental judicial or other administrative purposes and/or to carry out an audit of the Provider's compliance with this Agreement including all activities, performance security and integrity in connection therewith.
- 17.3. The Provider shall keep at its normal place of business detailed, accurate and up to date records of the quantity and value of the Deliverable(s) provided by it to any Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary, on or after the date of the Agreement and pursuant to the Agreement together with accurate details of the identity of the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary to which such Deliverable(s) were provided. Subject to any other auditing process being agreed between the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary and the Provider under this agreement or made in writing by the Parties, the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary shall be entitled by prior appointment to enter the Provider's normal place of business during normal office hours and to inspect such records in order to verify whether any statement supplied by the Provider to the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary pursuant to clause 10.8 is accurate and complete.

- 17.4. Both the Provider and the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary party to this Agreement acknowledge and agree that purchasing data in relation to any purchase under this Agreement will be shared with the Contracting Authority as an annual sales statement.
- 17.5. The Comptroller and Auditor General and the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary or its auditors may examine such documents as he may reasonably require which are owned, held or otherwise within the control of the Provider and may require the Provider to produce such oral or written explanation as he considers necessary. The Provider acknowledges that it will fully cooperate with any counter fraud policy or investigation, whether carried out by the Counter Fraud and Security Management Service, or any equivalent body, successor or function, at any time. For the avoidance of doubt it is hereby declared that the carrying out of an examination under Section 6(3)(d) of the National Audit Act 1983 or any re-enactment thereof in relation to the Provider is not a function exercisable under this Agreement.

18. Sub-contractors

- 18.1. The Provider shall not sub-contract the supply of any Deliverable without the previous consent in writing of the Authorised Officer (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld).
- 18.2. Subject to clause 23.1 if consent to sub-contract is requested from the Authorised Officer:
 - 18.2.1. the Purchasing Authority may insist upon the production to it (inter alia) of all reasonable information and documentation relevant to:
 - 18.2.1.1. the financial liability;
 - 18.2.1.2. competence; and
 - 18.2.1.3. relevant experience of the proposed subcontractor.
- 18.3. As reasonable and valid conditions of their consent under clause 23.1:
 - 18.3.1. the Provider must warrant that appropriate and adequate insurance is in place for the life of the sub-contract and that the Provider and sub-contractor will fully comply with clause 16;
 - 18.3.2. the Provider must engage the most appropriate and qualified sub-contractor to undertake the supply of the Deliverable(s).

19. Staff and Resources

- 19.1. The Provider shall be fully responsible in every way for all its' staff and all consultants (whether part-time or full-time).
- 19.2. The Provider shall ensure that it complies with all current employment legislation and in particular, does not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning of the Equality Act 2010, the Part Time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000, the Fixed Term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002, or any other relevant legislation relating to discrimination in the employment of employees for the purpose of providing the Deliverable(s). The Provider shall take all reasonable steps (at its own expense) to ensure that any employees employed in the provision of the Deliverable(s) do not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning of this clause 24.2 and shall impose on any Subcontractor obligations substantially similar to those imposed on the Provider by this clause 24.2; and
- 19.3. The Provider shall notify the Purchasing Authority and / or any Beneficiary immediately of any investigation of or proceedings against the Provider under the Equality Act 2010 and shall cooperate fully and promptly with any requests of the person or body conducting such investigation or proceedings, including allowing access to any documents or data required, attending any meetings and providing any information requested.
- 19.4. The Provider shall indemnify the Purchasing Authority and / or any Beneficiary against all costs, claims, charges, demands, liabilities, damages, losses and expenses incurred or suffered by Purchasing Authority and / or any Beneficiary arising out of or in connection with any investigation conducted or any proceedings brought under the 2010 Act due directly or indirectly to any act or omission by the Provider, its agents, employees or sub-contractors.
- 19.5. The Provider shall impose on any sub-contractor obligations substantially similar to those imposed on the Provider by this clause 24.
- 19.6. Where the Purchasing Authority has notified the Provider that it intends to tender or retender any Deliverable(s), the Provider shall on written request and within 20 (twenty) working days of such a request provide the Purchasing Authority with anonymised details of staff engaged in the provision of such Deliverable(s) to be tendered or retendered that may be subject to TUPE.

20. Providers' Key Personnel

20.1. Any notice, information, instruction or other communication given or made to the Agreement Manager shall be deemed to have been given or made to the Provider.

- 20.2. The Agreement Manager shall be suitably qualified in accordance with the Specification or Licence Agreement(s).
- 20.3. The Provider shall forthwith give notice in writing to the Authorised Officer of the identity of the person appointed as Agreement Manager and of any subsequent appointment. Until notice of a subsequent appointment shall have been given the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary shall be entitled to treat as Agreement Manager the person last notified to the Authorised Officer as being the Agreement Manager.
- 20.4. The Provider shall ensure that the Agreement Manager, or a competent deputy who is duly authorised to act on his behalf, is available to the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary at all times.
- 20.5. The Provider shall inform the Authorised Officer of the identity of any person authorised to act for any period as deputy for the Agreement Manager before the start of that period.
- 20.6. The Agreement Manager or his deputy shall consult with the Authorised Officer and such other of the Purchasing Authority's or any Beneficiary's own supervisory staff as may from time to time be specified by the Authorised Officer as often as may reasonably be necessary for the efficient provision of the Deliverable(s) in accordance with the Agreement.
- 20.7. All persons appointed to managerial and supervisory positions in accordance with the Agreement, Specification or Licence Agreement(s) must be to the acceptance of the Authorised Officer. The Provider shall notify the Authorised Officer of the Purchasing Authority of any change to such staff. The Authorised Officer shall retain the right to consult with the Provider regarding the candidates' skills and experience.
- 20.8. The Provider's staff engaged in and about the provision of the Deliverable(s) shall primarily be under the control and direction of the Provider's own supervisory staff but nevertheless while on the Purchasing Authority's and any Beneficiary's premises will obey all reasonable instructions given to them by the Purchasing Authority's or any Beneficiary's supervisory staff in any matter occasioned by the operational needs of the relevant Service or the health, safety or welfare of anyone.
- 20.9. The Provider shall ensure that his staff carry out their duties and behave while on the Purchasing Authority's or any Beneficiary's premises in an orderly manner and in as quiet a manner as may reasonably be practicable having regard to the nature of the duties being performed by them. The Provider's staff shall not cause any unreasonable or unnecessary disruption to the routines, practices,

and procedures of the Purchasing Authority's or any Beneficiary's staff, patients or visitors, or any of the staff of any other Providers.

21. Confidentiality

- 21.1. In respect of any Confidential Information it may receive from the other Party ("the Discloser") and subject always to the remainder of this clause 26, each Party ("the Recipient") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and shall not disclose any such Confidential Information to any third party, without the Discloser's prior written consent provided that:
 - 21.1.1. the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge, experience or skills which were in its possession prior to the commencement of the Agreement;
 - 21.1.2. the provisions of this clause 26 shall not apply to any Confidential Information which:
 - 21.1.2.1. is in or enters the public domain other than

by

breach of the Agreement or other act or omissions of the Recipient;

- 21.1.2.2. is obtained by a third party who is lawfully authorised to disclose such information; or
- 21.1.2.3. is authorised for release by the prior written consent of the Discloser; or
- 21.1.2.4. the disclosure of which is required to ensure the

compliance of the Purchasing Authority or (as the case may be) any Beneficiary with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (the FOIA).

- 21.2. Nothing in this clause 8 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential Information where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or otherwise by applicable law or, where the Provider is the Recipient, to the Provider's immediate or ultimate holding company provided that the Provider procures that such holding company complies with this clause 8 as if any reference to the Provider in this clause 26 were a reference to such holding company.
- 21.3. The Provider authorises the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary to disclose the Confidential Information to such person(s) as may be notified to the Provider in writing by the Purchasing Authority from time to time to the extent only as is necessary for the purposes of auditing and collating information so as to ascertain a realistic market price for the Goods supplied in accordance with the Agreement, such exercise being commonly referred to as "benchmarking". The Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary shall use all reasonable

endeavours to ensure that such person(s) keeps the Confidential Information confidential and does not make use of the Confidential Information except for the purpose for which the disclosure is made. The Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary shall not without good reason claim that the lowest price available in the market is the realistic market price.

- 21.4. The Provider acknowledges that the Purchasing Authority and Beneficiaries are or may be subject to the FOIA. The Provider notes and acknowledges the FOIA and both the respective Codes of Practice on the Discharge of Public Authorities' Functions and on the Management of Records (which are issued under section 45 and 46 of the FOIA respectively) and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 as may be amended, updated or replaced from time to time. The Provider will act in accordance with the FOIA, these Codes of Practice and these Regulations (and any other applicable codes of practice or guidance notified to the Provider from time to time) to the extent that they apply to the Provider's performance under the Agreement.
- 21.5. The Provider agrees that:
 - 21.5.1. without prejudice to the generality of clause 26.2, the provisions of this clause 26 are subject to the respective obligations and commitments of the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary (as the case may be) under the FOIA and both the respective Codes of Practice on the Discharge of Public Authorities' Functions and on the Management of Records (which are issued under section 45 and 46 of the FOIA respectively) and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004;
 - 21.5.2. subject to clause 26.5.3, the decision on whether any exemption applies to a request for disclosure of recorded information is a decision solely for the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary (as the case may be);
 - 21.5.3. where the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary is managing a request as referred to in clause 26.5.2, the Provider shall co-operate with the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary making the request and shall respond within 05 (five) working days of any request by it for assistance in determining how to respond to a request for disclosure.
- 21.6. The Provider shall agree that its sub-contractors shall:
 - 21.6.1. transfer any request for information, as defined under section 8 of the FOIA, to the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event within 05 (five) working days of receiving a request for information;

- 21.6.2. provide the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary with a copy of all information in its possession or power in the form that the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary requires within 05 (five) working days (or such other period as the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary may specify) of the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary requesting that Information; and
- 21.6.3. provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary to enable the Purchasing Authority or a Beneficiary to respond to a request for information within the time for compliance set out in section 10 of the FOIA.
- 21.7. The Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary (as the case may be) may consult the Provider in relation to any request for disclosure of the Provider's Confidential Information in accordance with all applicable guidance.
- 21.8. This clause 26 shall remain in force without limit in time in respect of Confidential Information which comprises Personal Data or which relates to a patient, his or her treatment and/or medical records. Save as aforesaid and unless otherwise expressly set out in the Agreement, this clause 26 shall remain in force for a period of three (03) years after the termination or expiry of this Agreement.
- 21.9. In the event that the Provider fails to comply with this clause 26, the Purchasing Authority reserves the right to terminate the Agreement by notice in writing with immediate effect.

22. Data Protection

- 22.1. The Provider shall comply with the Data Protection Legislation. In particular the Provider agrees to comply with the obligations placed on the Purchasing Authority as set out in Data Protection Legislation, namely:
 - 22.1.1. to maintain technical and organisational security measures sufficient to comply with the obligations imposed on the Purchasing Authority and the Provider by the Data Protection Legislation;
 - 22.1.2. only to process Personal Data for and on behalf of the Purchasing Authority, in accordance with the instructions of the Purchasing Authority as described in Annex Eight of this "Order Terms and Conditions" and for the purpose of performing the Services in accordance with the Agreement and to ensure compliance with the Data Protection Legislation;

- 22.2. The Parties acknowledge that for the purposes of the Data Protection Legislation, that the Purchasing Authority is the Controller and the Provider is the Processor.
- 22.3. The Provider shall only process Personal Data as authorised by the Purchasing Authority and described in Annex Eight and shall not process or use the Personal Data for any other purpose. The details in Annex Eight may not be determined by the Provider.
- 22.4. The Provider shall notify the Purchasing Authority immediately if it considers that any of the Purchasing Authority' instructions infringe the Data Protection Legislation.
- 22.5. The Provider shall provide all reasonable assistance to the Purchasing Authority in the preparation of any Data Protection Impact Assessment prior to commencing any processing. Such assistance may, at the discretion of the Purchasing Authority, include:
 - 22.5.1. a systematic description of the envisaged processing operations and the purpose of the processing;
 - 22.5.2. an assessment of the necessity and proportionality of the processing operations in relation to the Services;
 - 22.5.3. an assessment of the risks to the rights and freedoms of Data Subjects; and
 - 22.5.4. the measures envisaged to address the risks, including safeguards, security measures and mechanisms to ensure the protection of Personal Data.
- 22.6. The Provider shall, in relation to any Personal Data processed in connection with its obligations under this Agreement:
 - 22.6.1. process that Personal Data only in accordance with Annex Eight, unless the Provider is required to do otherwise by Law. If it is so required the Provider shall promptly notify the Purchasing Authority before processing the Personal Data unless prohibited by Law;
 - 22.6.2. ensure that it has in place Protective Measures, which have been reviewed and approved by the Purchasing Authority as appropriate to protect against a Data Loss Event having taken account of the:
 - 22.6.2.1. nature of the data to be protected;
 - 22.6.2.2. harm that might result from a Data Loss Event;
 - 22.6.2.3. state of technological development; and
 - 22.6.2.4. cost of implementing any measures;
 - 22.6.3. ensure that:

- 22.6.4. the Provider's Personnel do not process Personal Data except in accordance with this Agreement (and in particular Annex Ten);
- 22.6.5. it takes all reasonable steps to ensure the reliability and integrity of any Provider's Personnel who have access to the Personal Data and

ensure that they:

- 22.6.6. are aware of and comply with the Provider's duties under this clause;
- 22.6.7. are subject to appropriate confidentiality undertakings with the Provider or any Sub-processor;
- 22.6.8. are informed of the confidential nature of the Personal Data and do not publish, disclose or divulge any of the Personal Data to any third Party unless directed in writing to do so by the Purchasing Authority or as otherwise permitted by this Agreement; and
- 22.6.9. have undergone adequate training in the use, care, protection and handling of Personal Data; and

not transfer Personal Data outside of the EU unless the prior written consent of the Purchasing Authority has been obtained and the following conditions are fulfilled:

- 22.6.10. that the Purchasing Authority or the Provider has provided appropriate safeguards in relation to the transfer (whether in accordance with GDPR Article 46 or LED Article 37) as determined by the Purchasing Authority;
- 22.6.11. the Data Subject has enforceable rights and effective legal remedies;
- 22.6.12. the Provider complies with its obligations under the Data Protection Legislation by providing an adequate level of protection to any Personal Data that is transferred (or, if it is not so bound, uses its best endeavours to assist the Purchasing Authority in meeting its obligations); and
- 22.6.13. the Provider complies with any reasonable instructions notified to it in advance by the Purchasing Authority with respect to the processing of the Personal Data;
- 22.6.14. at the written direction of the Purchasing Authority, delete or return Personal Data (and any copies of it) to the Purchasing Authority on termination of the Agreement unless the Provider is required by Law to retain the Personal Data.
- 22.7. Subject to clause 27.8, the Provider shall notify the Purchasing Authority immediately if it:

- 22.7.1. receives a Data Subject Access Request (or purported Data Subject Access Request);
- 22.7.2. receives a request to rectify, block or erase any Personal Data;
- 22.7.3. receives any other request, complaint or communication relating to either Party's obligations under the Data Protection Legislation;
- 22.7.4. receives any communication from the Information Commissioner or any other regulatory authority in connection with Personal Data processed under this Agreement;
- 22.7.5. receives a request from any third Party for disclosure of Personal Data where compliance with such request is required or purported to be required by Law;

or

- 22.7.6. becomes aware of a Data Loss Event.
- 22.8. The Provider's obligation to notify under clause 27.7 shall include the provision of further information to the Purchasing Authority in phases, as details become available.
- 22.9. Taking into account the nature of the processing, the Provider shall provide the Purchasing Authority with full assistance in relation to either Party's obligations under Data Protection Legislation and any complaint, communication or request made under clause 27.7 (and insofar as possible within the timescales reasonably required by the Purchasing Authority) including by promptly providing:
 - 22.9.1. the Purchasing Authority with full details and copies of the complaint, communication or request;
 - 22.9.2. such assistance as is reasonably requested by the Purchasing Authority to enable the Purchasing Authority to comply with a Data Subject Access Request within the relevant timescales set out in the Data Protection Legislation;
 - 22.9.3. the Purchasing Authority, at its request, with any Personal Data it holds in relation to a Data Subject;
 - 22.9.4. assistance as requested by the Purchasing Authority following any Data Loss Event;
 - 22.9.5. assistance as requested by the Purchasing Authority with respect to any request from the Information Commissioner's Office, or any consultation by the Purchasing Authority with the Information Commissioner's Office.

- 22.10. The Provider shall maintain complete and accurate records and information to allow the Purchasing Authority to audit the Provider's compliance with the requirements of this Clause 27 on reasonable notice and/or to provide the Purchasing Authority with evidence of its compliance with the obligations set out in this Clause 27 and to demonstrate its compliance with this clause.
- 22.11. The Provider shall allow for audits of its Data Processing activity by the Purchasing Authority or the Purchasing Authority's designated auditor.
- 22.12. The Provider shall designate a data protection officer if required by the Data Protection Legislation.
- 22.13. Before allowing any Sub-processor to process any Personal Data related to this Agreement, the Provider must:
 - 22.13.1. notify the Purchasing Authority in writing of the intended Sub-processor and processing;
 - 22.13.2. obtain the written consent of the Purchasing Authority;
 - 22.13.3. enter into a written agreement with the Sub-processor which give effect to the terms set out in this clause 27 such that they apply to the Sub-processor; and
 - 22.13.4. provide the Purchasing Authority with such information regarding the Sub-processor as the Purchasing Authority may reasonably require.
- 22.14. The Provider shall remain fully liable for all acts or omissions of any Sub-processor.
- 22.15. The Purchasing Authority may, at any time on not less than 30 Working Days' notice, revise this clause by replacing it with any applicable controller to processor standard clauses or similar terms forming part of an applicable certification scheme (which shall apply when incorporated by attachment to this Agreement).
- 22.16. The Parties agree to take account of any guidance issued by the Information Commissioner's Office. The Purchasing Authority may on not less than 30 Working Days' notice to the Provider amend this agreement to ensure that it complies with any guidance issued by the Information Commissioner's Office.
- 22.17. The Provider agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified the Purchasing Authority against all claims and proceedings and all liability, loss, costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith by the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary as a result of any claim made or brought by any individual or other legal person in respect of any loss, damage or distress caused to that individual or other legal person as a result of the Provider's unauthorised processing, unlawful

processing, destruction of and/or damage to any Personal Data processed by the Provider, its employees or agents in the Provider's performance of the Agreement or as otherwise agreed between the Parties.

23. Health and Safety

- 23.1. The Provider shall comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations and codes of practice relating to health and safety, which may apply to Staff and other persons working on the Premises in the performance of its obligations under the Agreement.
- 23.2. The Provider shall ensure that its health and safety policy statement (as required by the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974) is made available to the Institute on request

24. **Termination**

- 24.1. The Purchasing Authority may terminate the Agreement (in whole or in part) with immediate effect in any of the following circumstances:
 - a material failure (in whole or in part) by the Provider to 24.1.1. perform any material obligation of the Provider under this Agreement provided that (if capable of remedy) such failure has not been remedied to the Purchasing Authority's reasonable satisfaction within a period of 30 (thirty) working days following written notice demanding remedy of the failure in question being served by the Purchasing Authority on the Provider; or
 - 24.1.2. if the Provider repeats any breach of this Agreement after receiving a written notice from the Purchasing Authority warning that repetition of the breach shall or may lead to termination (whether or not the repeated breach is remedied within 30 days); ; or
 - 24.1.3. the Provider becomes Insolvent or otherwise ceases to be capable of providing the Deliverable(s); or
 - 24.1.4. the Provider is in default of any duty of care or any fiduciary or statutory duty owed to the Purchasing Authority and/or any Beneficiary and/or any patient, employee or agent of the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary; or
 - 24.1.5. there is a change of ownership or control of the Provider which, in the reasonable opinion of the Purchasing Authority will have a material impact on the provision of the Deliverable(s) or the image of the Purchasing Authority; or
 - 24.1.6. the Provider purports to assign the Agreement in breach of clause 38; or

- 24.1.7. the Provider shall have offered or given or agreed to give to any person any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for doing or forbearing to do, or for having done or forborne to do, any action in relation to the obtaining or execution of the Agreement or any other Agreement with the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary, or for showing or forbearing to show favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the Agreement or any other Agreement with the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary; or similar acts have been done by any person employed by it or acting on its behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the Provider); or
- 24.1.8. if in relation to the Agreement or any other Agreement with the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary the Provider or any person employed by it or acting on its behalf shall have committed any offence under the Bribery Act 2010, or shall have given any fee or reward to any officer of the Purchasing Authority or, as the case may be, Beneficiary which shall have been exacted or accepted by such officer under colour of his office or employment and is otherwise than such officer's proper remuneration.
- 24.2. The Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary shall be entitled to recover from the Provider the amount of any Loss resulting from termination under clause 29.1. For the purpose of this clause, Loss shall include reasonable cost to the Purchasing Authority and any Beneficiary of the time spent by its officers in terminating the Agreement and in making alternative arrangements for the provision of the Deliverable(s).
- 24.3. The Provider agrees that upon termination for any reason (under Clause 29.1 or otherwise) or expiry of the Agreement it shall not be entitled to make a claim against the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary in relation to costs incurred by the Provider in providing the Deliverable(s) or costs incurred in acquiring equipment and/or materials used in the provision of the Deliverable(s) or in engaging third parties in connection with the Deliverable(s) whether or not such costs were amortised in the calculation of the Agreement Price payable by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary under the Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the Provider will not be restricted from making any claim in respect of the Agreement Price to the extent the Agreement Price is outstanding and due and payable.
- 24.4. The Purchasing Authority and the Provider agree that termination (in whole or in part) or expiry of the Agreement shall not affect either Party's obligations which the Agreement provides shall survive the termination or expiry of the Agreement or the continuance of the part or parts not terminated where the Agreement is terminated in part only.

- 24.5. Any termination (in whole or in part) of the Agreement will not prejudice the rights, obligations and duties of each Party arising prior to such termination taking effect.
- 24.6. In addition to its rights under any other provision of the Agreement the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary may terminate the Agreement at any time by giving the Provider 03 (three) Months' written notice.
- 24.7. In addition to its rights under any other provision of the Agreement the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary may terminate the Agreement at any time by giving the Provider 01 (one) Month written notice if the Provider is terminated from the Framework Agreement by the Contracting Authority.

25. **Agreement or Specification Change or Variation**

- 25.1. The Purchasing Authority may at any time propose to the Provider any reasonable variation or addition to the Agreement or Specification or Licence Agreement(s) and the Provider shall not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to such variation.
- 25.2. No such variation or addition shall affect the continuation of the Agreement.
- 25.3. Where the either Party see a need to make a change to the Agreement or Specification or Licence Agreement(s), the Purchasing Authority may at any time request such change and the Provider may at any time recommend such change, provided that each Party gives the other at least 01 (one) Month's written notice of any change or addition and provided that either (a) such change or addition can be achieved without need for additional funding; or (b) that the Purchasing Authority agrees to provide any additional funding reasonably required by the Provider in respect of such change or addition; or (c) should the change require an adjustment to the Agreement Price, that such adjustment is agreed by both parties. The notice shall give details of the variation or addition and the date on which it is to take effect.
- 25.4. Any request for an Agreement or Specification or Licence Agreement(s) change shall be provided in writing in the form at Annex SIX.
- 25.5. Neither Party shall unreasonably withhold its agreement to any Agreement or Specification or Licence Agreement(s) change. For the avoidance of doubt any withholding of agreement by the Purchasing Authority shall not be considered to be unreasonable where any Agreement or Specification or Licence Agreement(s) change recommended by the Provider would or might (in the opinion of the Purchasing Authority) result in the Provider's provision of the

Deliverable(s) failing to conform to the terms of this Agreement or to the Agreement Price being exceeded.

- 25.6. Until such time as an Agreement change is made the Provider shall, unless otherwise agreed in writing, continue to provide the Deliverable(s) pursuant to the Agreement as if the request or recommendation had not been made.
- 25.7. Any discussions which may take place between the Parties in connection with a request or recommendation before the authorisation of a resultant Agreement or Specification or Licence Agreement(s) change shall be without prejudice to the rights of either Party.
- 25.8. Discussion between the Parties concerning an Agreement change shall result in one of the following:
 - 25.8.1. no action being taken; or
 - 25.8.2. the request to make an Agreement change by the Purchasing Authority being implemented; or
 - 25.8.3. the recommendation to make an Agreement change by the Provider being implemented.
- 25.9. Subject to clause 30.7 this Agreement cannot be varied except in writing and signed by the lawful representatives of both Parties.
- 25.10. In the event that the Agreement is varied in such a way as to affect the Agreement Price and if agreement between the Parties cannot be reached on the adjustment to the Agreement Price within 03 (three) Months both Parties shall jointly act to resolve the dispute in accordance with clause 31.
- 25.11. If the adjusted Agreement Price is not so agreed or certified until after such variation has taken effect, the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary shall continue to pay the Provider at the rate current prior to the variation but shall pay to the Provider, or be entitled to recover from the Provider as the case may be, such sum if any as is equal to the difference between the amount which should have been paid in accordance with the adjusted Agreement Price and the amount which was actually paid.

26. Dispute Resolution Procedure

26.1. During any dispute, including a dispute as to the validity of the Agreement, it is mutually agreed that the Provider shall continue its performance of the provisions of the Agreement (unless the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary requests in writing that the Provider does not do so).

- 26.2. If a dispute arises between the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary and the Provider in relation to any matter which cannot be resolved by the Authorised Officer and the Provider Manager either of them may refer such dispute to the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- 26.3. In the first instance each of the Purchasing Authority or such Beneficiary and the Provider shall arrange for a more senior representative than those referred to in clause 31.2 Error! Reference source not found. to meet solely in order to resolve the matter in dispute. Such meeting(s) shall be minuted and shall be chaired by the Purchasing Authority or such Beneficiary (but the chairman shall not have a casting vote). Such meeting(s) shall be conducted in such manner and at such venue (including a meeting conducted over the telephone) as to promote a consensual resolution of the dispute in question at the discretion of the chairman.
- 26.4. If the meeting(s) referred to in clause 31.3 does not resolve the matter in guestion then the Parties will attempt to settle it by mediation in accordance with the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution ("CEDR") Model Mediation Procedure or any other model mediation procedure as agreed by the Parties. To initiate a mediation the Parties may give notice in writing (a "Mediation Notice") to the other requesting mediation of the dispute and shall send a copy thereof to CEDR or an equivalent mediation organisation as agreed by the Parties asking them to nominate a mediator. The mediation shall commence within 28 (twenty eight) working days of the Mediation Notice being served. Neither Party will terminate such mediation until each of them has made its opening presentation and the mediator has met each of them separately for at least one hour. Thereafter paragraph 14 (fourteen) of the Model Mediation Procedure will apply (or the equivalent paragraph of any other model mediation procedure agreed by the Parties). Neither Party to the mediation will commence legal proceedings against the other until 30 (thirty) working days after such mediation of the dispute in guestion has failed to resolve the dispute. The Parties will co-operate with any person appointed as mediator providing him with such information and other assistance as he shall require and will pay his costs, as he shall determine or in the absence of such determination such costs will be shared equally.

27. Force Majeure

- 27.1. No Party shall be entitled to bring a claim for a breach of obligations under the Agreement by the other Party or incur any liability to the other Party for any Loss or damages incurred by that party to the extent that a Force Maieure Event occurs and it is prevented from carrying out obligations by that event of force majeure.
- In the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, the Affected Party shall 27.2. notify the other Party as soon as practicable. The notification shall

include details of the Force Majeure Event, including evidence of its effect on the obligations of the Affected Party and any action proposed to mitigate its effect.

27.3. As soon as practicable, following such notification, the Parties shall consult with each other in good faith and use all reasonable endeavours to agree appropriate terms to mitigate the effects of the Force Majeure Event and facilitate the continued performance of the Agreement.

28. Environmental and Sustainability

- 28.1. The Provider shall perform its obligations under the Agreement in accordance with the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiaries environmental policy, which is to conserve energy, water, wood, paper and other resources, reduce waste and phase out the use of ozone depleting substances and minimise the release of greenhouse gases, volatile organic compounds and other substances damaging to health and the environment.
- 28.2. The Provider shall comply in all material respects with applicable environmental laws and regulations in force from time to time in relation to the Deliverable(s). Where the provisions of any such legislation are implemented by the use of voluntary agreements or codes of practice, the Provider shall comply with such agreements or codes of practices as if they were incorporated into English law subject to those voluntary agreements being cited in tender documentation.
- 28.3. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the Provider shall where applicable:
 - 28.3.1. comply with all reasonable stipulations of the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary aimed at minimising packaging in which any products supplied by the Provider to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary, as part of the performance, of the Deliverable(s) are supplied; and
 - 28.3.2. promptly provide such data as may reasonably be requested by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary from time to time regarding the weight and type of packaging according to material type used in relation to all products supplied to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary under or pursuant to the Agreement, and no more than once per calendar year; and
 - 28.3.3. comply with all obligations imposed on it in relation to any products supplied to the Purchasing Authority or any
Beneficiary as part of the performance of the Deliverable(s) by Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) Regulations 2007, Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 (or any other equivalent legislation giving effect in any part of the European Economic Area to the Packaging and Packaging Waste Directive 94/62/EC); and

- 28.3.4. label all products supplied to the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary by the Provider under the Agreement and the packaging of those products, to highlight environmental and safety information as required by applicable UK and EU legislation; and
- 28.3.5. unless otherwise agreed with the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary, insofar as any Deliverable(s) supplied under the Agreement comprise or include electrical or electronic equipment, manage the said equipment and associated consumables at end of life to facilitate recovery, treatment, recycling and provide any information which the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary may reasonably require from time to time;
- 28.3.6. promptly provide all such information regarding the environmental impact of any Deliverable(s) supplied or used under the Agreement as may reasonably be required by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary to permit informed choices by end users;
- 28.3.7. where Goods are imported in to the UK then for the purposes of the Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) Regulations 1997 (as amended) and the Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Provider shall assume the rolled-up obligations for all activities performed outside the United Kingdom in relation to the Goods and the packaging which is used for the containment, protection, handling, delivery and presentation of the Goods in addition to any other obligations he may have pursuant to the said regulations.
- 28.4. The Provider shall meet all reasonable requests by the Purchasing Authority or any Beneficiary for information evidencing the Provider's compliance with the provisions of this clause.

29. Sustainability/Carbon Emission Management

29.1.1. The Provider will ensure that a Board approved Sustainable Development Strategy and Carbon Management Plan is produced, and reviewed at least annually.

- 29.1.2. The Provider will ensure key personnel, particularly managers, are familiar and up to date with the Sustainable Development Strategy and Carbon Management Plan, and their role within it.
- 29.1.3. The Provider shall use its best endeavours to comply with the requirements of the Climate Change Act (2008), the NHS Carbon Reduction Strategy (2009) and any future updates or any such equivalent law of the geological location where the work takes place. The Provider will ensure key personnel, in particular managers, are familiar with the strategy and updates or any other relevant environmental requirements.
- 29.1.4. Where appropriate the Provider is encouraged to sign up to the Good Corporate Citizenship Assessment Model.
- 29.1.5. The Provider will ensure a process and system is in place to measure, monitor and reduce carbon across the organisation.
- 29.1.6. The Provider will use its best endeavours to ensure that policies and procedures are in place to monitor, review and report on carbon across the organisation in relation to:

29.1.6.1. Procurement – Goods, Service(s) and Licensed

Materials purchased

29.1.6.2. Building energy – heating, hot water,

electricity

consumption and cooling

29.1.6.3. Travel – 'Green' Travel Plan, movement of people

(i.e. patients, visitors and staff)

- 29.1.6.4. Water better use of water
- 29.1.6.5. Waste reduce, reuse and recycle
- 29.1.7. The Provider will ensure a process is in place to actively raise awareness of sustainability and carbon reduction at every level of the organisation.
- 29.1.8. The Provider will demonstrate the consideration of carbon reduction within innovation to improve the quality and sustainability of Deliverable(s) to the Purchasing Authority on reasonable request.
- 29.1.9. The provider will use its best endeavours to ensure that resilience and business continuity plans are in plan for climate change adaptation.

30. Inducements to Purchase

Adapted from NICE Electronic and Print Content Framework Order Terms & Conditions, May 2018 37

- 30.1. The Provider shall not offer or give to any member of staff of the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiaries or a member of their family any gift or consideration of any kind (including the payment of commission) as an inducement or reward for doing something or not doing something or for having done something or having not done something in relation to the obtaining of or execution of this Agreement or any Agreement with the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiaries. This prohibition specifically includes the payment of any fee or other consideration for any work in respect of or in connection with the Project Services carried out by a member of staff of the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiaries to that member of staff or to a member of their family.
- 30.2. Any breach of this condition by the Provider or anyone employed by the Provider (with or without the knowledge of the Contractor) or the commission of any offence under the Bribery Act (2010) shall entitle the Purchasing Authority and / or Beneficiaries to terminate this Agreement immediately and/or to recover from the Provider any payment made to the Provider.

31. **Procurement Transparency**

- 31.1. The Provider acknowledges that this Agreement and any Licence Agreement(s) that form part of this Agreement will be published in its entirety in order to comply with the UK governments Transparency Agenda. Limited redactions may be made before publication in order to comply with existing law and for the protection of national security.
- 31.2. Subject to 36.1, 36.3 and 36.4 the Provider must notify the Purchasing Authority and / or any Beneficiary of any sections of this Agreement that they regard as Commercial in Confidence or subject to the non-disclosure clauses of the FOIA or DPA. Any such request must provide a clear justification for the proposed redaction.
- 31.3. The total value (bottom line) of the Agreement is required to be published under current EU regulations and the UK governments Transparency Agenda.
- 31.4. The parties acknowledge that, except for any information which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA and/or the DPA, the content of this Agreement is not Confidential Information. The Purchasing Authority and / or any Beneficiary shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any of the content of the Agreement is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA and/or the DPA.
- Notwithstanding any other term of this Agreement, the Provider 31.5. hereby gives his consent for and / or any Beneficiary to publish the Agreement in its entirety, including from time to time agreed changes

to the Agreement, to the general public. And agrees to the public reuse of the documents provided that such reuse cites the source and do not misuse or deliberately mislead.

31.6. Both Parties shall take reasonable steps to ensure that their servants, employees, agents, sub-contractors, suppliers, publishers, professional advisors and consultants comply with this clause 36.

32. Warranty

- 32.1. The Provider warrants to the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary that it has all necessary corporate standing and authorisation to enter into and be bound by the terms of this Agreement. At all times in connection with this Agreement, the Provider shall be an independent Provider and nothing in this Agreement shall create a relationship of agency or partnership or a joint venture as between the Provider and the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary and accordingly the Provider shall not be authorised to bind the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary.
- 32.2. The Provider shall not incur any liabilities on behalf of the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary; or, make any representations or give any warranty on behalf of the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary; or, enter into any contract or obligation on behalf of the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary.

33. Assignment

- 33.1. The Provider shall not assign the whole or any part of the Agreement without the prior written consent of the Purchasing Authority.
- 33.2. Subject to 38.1 if consent to assign is requested from the Authorised Officer:
 - 33.2.1. the Purchasing Authority may insist upon the production to it (inter alia) of all reasonable information and documentation relevant to:
 - 33.2.1.1. the financial liability;
 - 33.2.1.2. competence; and
 - 33.2.1.3. relevant experience of the proposed assignee
 - 33.2.1.4. as reasonable and valid conditions of their consent under clause 38.1;
 - 33.2.2. the Provider must warrant that the Provider and assignee will fully comply with clause 22;
 - 33.2.3. the Provider must engage the most appropriate and qualified assignee to undertake the supply of the Deliverable(s).

34. Notices

- 34.1. Any notice to be given under the Agreement shall either be delivered personally, sent by facsimile or sent by first class recorded delivery post (airmail if overseas) or electronic mail. The address for service of each Party shall be its registered office or such other address as either Party may previously have notified to the other Party in writing. A notice shall be deemed to have been served:
 - 34.1.1. if personally delivered, at the time of delivery;
 - 34.1.2. if sent by facsimile at the time of transmission;
 - 34.1.3. if posted, at the expiration of 48 (forty-eight) hours or (in the case of airmail 07 (seven) working days) after the envelope containing the same was delivered into the custody of the postal authorities; and
 - 34.1.4. if sent by electronic mail, a telephone call is made to the recipient warning the recipient that an electronic mail message has been sent to him (as evidenced by a contemporaneous note of the Party sending the notice) and a hard copy of such notice is also sent by first class recorded delivery post (airmail if overseas) on the same day as that on which the electronic mail is sent.
- 34.2. In proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove that personal delivery was made, or that the envelope containing such notice was properly addressed and delivered into the custody of the postal authority as prepaid first class, recorded delivery or airmail letter (as appropriate) or that the facsimile was transmitted on a tested line or that the correct transmission report was received from the facsimile machine sending the notice as the case may be.

35. Law

35.1. The Provider submits to the jurisdiction of the English courts and agrees that the Agreement is to be governed and construed according to English law.

36. General

- 36.1. Save as required by law and the Licence Agreement(s), no publicity shall be made by any of the Parties relating to any matter in connection with the Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.
- 36.2. The Provider shall from time to time upon the request of the Purchasing Authority, execute any additional documents and do any other acts or things which may reasonably be required to implement the provisions of the Agreement.

- 36.3. Any provision of the Agreement which is held to be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the remaining provisions hereof and any such invalidity or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provisions in any other jurisdiction.
- 36.4. The Provider acknowledges and agrees that it has not relied on any representation, warranty or undertaking (whether written or oral) in relation to the subject matter of the Agreement and therefore irrevocably and unconditionally waives any rights it may have to claim damages against the Purchasing Authority for any misrepresentation (whether made carelessly or not) or for breach of any warranty unless the representation relied upon is set out in the Agreement or unless such representation was made fraudulently.
- 36.5. The failure by the Purchasing Authority, the Provider or, as the case may be, any Beneficiary to insist upon the strict performance of any provision, term or condition of the Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy consequent upon the breach thereof shall not constitute a waiver of any such breach or any subsequent breach of such provision, term or condition.
- 36.6. Each Party shall bear its own expenses in relation to the preparation, execution and implementation of the Agreement including all costs legal fees and other expenses so incurred.
- 36.7. The Provider warrants represents and undertakes to the Purchasing Authority that there are no pending or threatened actions or proceedings before any court or administrative agency which would materially adversely affect the financial condition, business or operations of the Provider and that there are no material contracts existing to which the Provider is a party which prevent it from entering into the Agreement; and that the Provider has satisfied itself as to the nature and extent of the risks assumed by it under the Agreement and gathered all information necessary to perform its obligations under the Agreement and all other obligations assumed by it.
- 36.8. The rights and remedies provided in the Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by the general law, or by any other contract or document. In this provision "general law" includes the law of a country other than England, and "right" includes any power, privilege, remedy, or proprietary or security interest.

ANNEX ONE: Specification

The Provider shall provide access to the handbooks, textbooks and "Emergencies In" titles to all regions of Health Education England as included within the Appendix below:



ANNEX TWO

NHS Eligibility Criteria

The NHS eligibility criteria list defines the eligible persons who are entitled to have OpenAthens accounts in England. The current list was originally defined to set out all **eligible persons** across the NHS who could access electronic content resources purchased at a national level.

For all other purchasing levels made through the Framework e.g. regional, local, consortia, eligibility will consist of the eligible persons as listed in the NHS Eligibility Criteria within **geographically** or **organisationally**-defined areas.

Additionally, those Beneficiaries who choose to purchase through the Framework, will have their own specific eligibility requirements.

This list may from time to time be updated at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/about/what-we-do/evidence-services/journals-and-databases/openathens/openathens-eligibility</u>

Authorised users

- A. Employees, workers and contractors of NHS organisations which provide NHS-commissioned care in England
 Examples: NHS Trusts; GP practices; NHS Treatment Centres;
 Defence Medical Services; Prison Healthcare Services.
- B. Individuals of non NHS organisations which provide NHScommissioned care in England working directly with NHS patients Examples: independent, private, charitable and voluntary sector organisations; local authority organisations which provide NHScommissioned care or work in partnership with the NHS to provide care to NHS patients, including dental practices pharmacies, hospices, cancer support charities and social enterprise organisations; government-funded bodies which provide public health services and organisations that work in partnership with NHS organisations.
- C. Employees, workers and contractors of organisations which commission care for NHS patients in England Examples: Clinical Commissioning Groups, Commissioning Support

Units; NHS England Area Teams; NHS Commissioning Boards; NHS Commissioning Support agencies; Local Authorities including those in a Public Health role.

- D. Employees, workers and contractors of organisations which receive government funding to provide executive, regulatory, advisory and delivery services to the NHS in England Examples: The Department of Health (DH); Local Education and Training Boards; Health Education England; Monitor; the Care Quality Commission; DH 'Arm's Length Bodies' including Special Health Authorities, Executive Agencies and Non Departmental Public Bodies, and DH-owned companies.
- E. Individual employees, workers and contractors of organisations which receive government funding to provide social care services or information to support social care service delivery Examples: local authorities, Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service, Social Care Institute for Excellence, Skills for Care, Centre for Excellence and Outcomes in Children and Young People's Services.
- F. Registered health care professionals who provide NHScommissioned care in England

Examples: registered medical practitioners, dentists, dispensing and ophthalmic opticians, pharmacists, pharmacy technicians and dispensing staff; registered professionals recognised by the Nursing and Midwifery Council and by the Health Professions Council, including independent sector nurses providing cancer care.

 G. Individuals engaged to provide education, training or research for the NHS in England

Examples: educators contracted to provide training to the NHS, librarians delivering services to NHS, researchers contracted to do DHor NHS-funded research.

 H. Healthcare students whilst on practice placement within NHS provider services

- I. Patients, carers and members of the public (walk-in access only) Note: Only those patients, carers and members of the public that have access to local NHS library & knowledge service premises in England can access NHS purchased content.
- J. Any other person authorised by a national, regional or local Open Athens administrator to use or otherwise have the benefit of NHS Deliverables or Services.

Examples: NHS volunteers; employees of PFI partners which provide maintenance, catering and portering services in hospitals; individual representatives of NHS-related collaboratives e.g. HealthWatch, Comprehensive Local Research Networks, Collaborations for Leadership in Applied Health Research and Care, Health Innovation & Education Clusters; individual public-sector employees working in partnership with the NHS e.g. coroner, health service ombudsman, police officer; registered members of NHS library services; at the discretion of NHS librarians, retired NHS staff who have retained their professional registration.

Annex THREE Pricing Schedule

The Provider will invoice the Purchasing Authority or Beneficiary annually in advance according to the schedule below for the Deliverables provided and subject to invoicing terms in section 21: Invoicing and Payment to this "Order Terms & Conditions".

The Total Cost to the Authority for the Provision of this Order shall be $\pounds 682,033.55$.

Payments of shall be made annually to the Supplier on receipt of invoice.

ANNEX FOUR

Beneficiaries Party to this Agreement

The Beneficiaries listed below shall be party to this Agreement and are the Beneficiaries to which the Purchasing Authority has purchased the Deliverables as set out in the Specification (Annex ONE to this document) in partnership, collaboration or consortia:

Organisation (from Beneficiaries List)	Address	Contact Name of Beneficiary

ANNEX FIVE Licence

The terms of the "Health & Social Care Content (HSCC) Licence" will apply.

ANNEX SIX

Variation to Agreement

Schedule 1 to the Agreement between the Purchasing Authority and the Day of 200 ("the Agreement"). provider of on the

For the purposes of this Memorandum of Agreement:

the "Purchasing Authority Commissioning Manager"	means the individual from time to time appointed by the Purchasing Authority and notified to the Provider in writing responsible for the co-ordination of the development specified below;

This Memorandum of Agreement, pertain to the development of [add details] (the "Services and Supply") to be undertaken by the Provider and is agreed by the Provider and the Purchasing Authority as a current addition to Annex ONE to the Agreement.

The Development Services and Supply will:

be developed by the Provider in compliance with the Specification or Schedule(s) contained in this Memorandum, and

be developed and delivered in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

This Development Services and Supply consists of:

[To be completed]

The Scope and this Memorandum may only be varied with the prior written agreement of the Purchasing Authority, such agreement (if given) not to be unreasonably delayed.

The Milestones for deliverables which are required by the Purchasing Authority are detailed in this Memorandum. The Purchasing Authority requires, and the Provider will deliver [annually, quarterly, monthly] a

Monitoring Report in the form and by the times set out within the Schedule for Reporting & Monitoring.

Milestone

Milestones Due Date

The Provider shall be deemed to have completed a Milestone by the Due Date notwithstanding any delay beyond the Due Date if such delay would not have occurred but for any act or omission of the Purchasing Authority, anything done or omitted to be done on the Purchasing Authority instructions or any other act or omission of a third party which was beyond the reasonable control of the Provider (for the avoidance of doubt such third parties do not include the Provider's sub-Contractors,).

Terms defined in the Agreement shall bear the same meanings in this Memorandum of Agreement, unless otherwise stated, or the context otherwise requires.

Signature on behalf of the Provider	Signature on behalf of the Purchasing Authority
Name	Name
Title	Title
Date	Date

Adapted from NICE Electronic and Print Content Framework Order Terms & Conditions, May 2018 50

Annex SEVEN Additional Terms

N/A

Annex EIGHT

Subject matter of the processing	Granting and allowing access to the Licensed Materials using the Providers access and authentication service
Duration of the processing	Processing shall take place for the duration of the Contract Term
Purposes of the processing	The Provider may only use personal identifiable attributes and or data for the purposes of allowing access to Licensed Materials
Nature of the processing	The Provider may use any personal identifiable attributes for the purpose of granting access to Licensed Materials.
Type of Personal Data	Any identifiable attributes which may be required for authentication purposes such as name, email address.
Categories of Data Subject	The Data Subjects shall be the Authorised Users as set out in Annex 2
Plan for return and destruction of the data once the processing is complete	Unless there is a statutory obligation to preserve the data, the Provider shall not store personal identifiable attributes. The attributes will be deleted on the closing of each user session.

SIGNATURES: ORDER TERMS & CONDITIONS

AS WITNESS the hands of the parties the day and year below first written

Authorised Signatories

For and on behalf of The Provider:	
Signature	
Print Name: Market Date: 28 January 2021	

Position: Director, Library Sales, UK, Europe & ANZ

For and on behalf of The Purchasing Authority		
Signature		
Print Name		
Date 8 February 2021		
Position (Budget Holder)	Director of Innovation and Transformation	